
 
 
 
 

TENTATIVE AGENDA & MEETING NOTICE 
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

TUESDAY, FEBRUARY 7, 2023 
5:30 P.M. 

WATAUGA COUNTY ADMINISTRATION BUILDING 
COMMISSIONERS’ BOARD ROOM 

 
 
 

TIME # TOPIC PRESENTER PAGE 
     

5:30 1 CALL REGULAR MEETING TO ORDER   
 2 APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 

January 17, 2023, Regular Meeting 
January 17, 2023, Closed Session 

 1 

 3 APPROVAL OF THE FEBRUARY 7, 2023, AGENDA  11 
5:35 4 W.A.M.Y. PRESENTATION MS. MELANIE JIRKA 

MS. AMBER BALDUF 
13 

5:40 5 4H PRESENTATION MS. KATE PAYNE 19 
5:45 6 BLUE RIDGE CONSERVANCY PRESENTATION MS. WENDY PATOPRSTY 39 
5:50 7 NEW RIVER CONSERVANCY PRESENTATION MS. KATIE KROGMEIER 41 
5:55 8 WATAUGA COUNTY PUBLIC LIBRARY ANNUAL REPORT MS. MONICA CARUSO 59 

6:00 9 MAINTENANCE MATTERS 
A. Bid Award Request for Hannah Building Roof 
B. Bid Award Request for Law Enforcement Center 

HVAC 

MR. ROBERT MARSH  
71 

123 

6:05 10 PARKS AND RECREATION OUT-OF-STATE TRAVEL REQUEST MR. ERIC SMALLWOOD 127 
6:10 11 FINANCE MATTERS 

A. Proposed Audit Contract for Fiscal Year Ending June 
30, 2023 

B. Proposed Letter of Engagement for County Financials 
for Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2023 

MS. SAMANTHA JONES  
131 

 
151 

6:15 12 MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 
A. Boards and Commissions 
B. Announcements  

MR. DERON GEOUQUE  
155 
161 

6:20 13 PUBLIC COMMENT  162 
7:20 14 BREAK  162 
7:25 15 CLOSED SESSION 

Attorney/Client Matters – G. S. 143-318.11(a)(3) 
 162 

7:45 16 ADJOURN   

 



AGENDA ITEM 2: 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 
January 17, 2023, Regular Meeting  
January 17, 2023, Closed Session   
 
 
 

  

020723 BCC Meeting

1



MINUTES 
 

WATAUGA COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
TUESDAY, JANUARY 17, 2023 

 

The Watauga County Board of Commissioners held a regular meeting, as scheduled, on Tuesday, 
January 17, 2023, at 5:30 P.M. in the Commissioners’ Board Room located in the Watauga County 
Administration Building, Boone, North Carolina. 
 
Chairman Turnbow called the meeting to order at 5:30 P.M.  The following were present: 
 

PRESENT:  Larry Turnbow, Chairman 
   Charlie Wallin, Vice-Chairman 
   Todd Castle, Commissioner 
   Braxton Eggers, Commissioner 
   Ray Russell, Commissioner 
   Anthony di Santi, County Attorney 

Deron Geouque, County Manager 
Anita J. Fogle, Clerk to the Board 

 

Commissioner Russell opened with a prayer and Commissioner Castle led the Pledge of 
Allegiance. 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
Chairman Turnbow called for additions and/or corrections to the December 20, 2022, regular 
meeting and closed session minutes. 
  
Commissioner Eggers, seconded by Commissioner Wallin, moved to approve the 
December 20, 2022, regular meeting minutes as presented. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

 
Commissioner Eggers, seconded by Commissioner Wallin, moved to approve the 
December 20, 2022, closed session minutes as presented. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
Chairman Turnbow called for additions and/or corrections to the January 17, 2023, agenda. 
 
Commissioner Wallin, seconded by Commissioner Russell, moved to approve the 
January 17, 2023, agenda as presented. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

DRAFT 
020723 BCC Meeting

2



PUBLIC HEARING TO ALLOW CITIZEN COMMENT REGARDING THE REQUEST TO 
NAME THE HIGHWAY 321 BRIDGE OVER WATAUGA RIVER NEAR WATAUGA RIVER 
ROAD IN MEMORY OF SERGEANT CHRISTOPHER DAVID WARD 

A public hearing was scheduled to allow public comment regarding the naming of the Highway 
321 Watauga River Bridge in memory of Sergeant Christopher David Ward.  The hearing met the 
public forum requirement by the NCDOT showing community support for the naming request.  As 
part of the process, a proposed resolution was presented to be submitted along with background 
information on the nominee, a description of what was requested to be named, as well as public 
input and support to NCDOT staff.  NCDOT staff would review the information to ensure the 
application meets policy and confirm that there was not any local opposition.  After review the 
NCDOT staff would forward to the Transportation Road, Bridge, and Ferry Naming Committee 
for action.  The Board member representing the area where the requested bridge was located must 
endorse the request.  If approved, the Transportation Road, Bridge, and Ferry Naming Committee 
will forward a resolution for the Board of Transportation’s approval.  The Board of Transportation 
will approve or deny the request. 
 
Commissioner Wallin, seconded by Commissioner Castle, moved to call the public hearing to 
order at 5:35 P.M. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

 
With support from several friends and family in the audience, the following citizens spoke in 
support of naming of the Highway 321 Watauga River Bridge in memory of Sergeant Christopher 
David Ward:  Mr. David Ward and Ms. Candace Ward.  No opposition was presented. 
 
Commissioner Wallin, seconded by Commissioner Castle, moved to close the public hearing at 
5:37 P.M. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

 
Commissioner Eggers, seconded by Commissioner Castle, moved to adopt the resolution as 
presented; to direct staff to complete all necessary paperwork and forward to NCDOT for 
consideration, and to approve the payment for the $2,000 sign fee. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

PROPOSED KILL/CHILL MEAT SLAUGHTER FACILITY UPDATE 
Jim Hamilton, Cooperative Extension, presented the following update on the Kill/Chill project: 
 

• $474,450 awarded from NC Ag Development Trust Fund in August, bringing total 
committed funds for the project to $2,370,000:  

020723 BCC Meeting

3



• Golden LEAF ($1,000,000) 
• Tobacco Trust Fund ($220,000) 
• ARC ($100,000) 
• Ag Development Trust Fund ($474,000) 
• ARP/Watauga County ($500,000) 
• Opportunity Appalachia ($75,000) 

• Soil testing at proposed site completed by Catawba Valley Engineering in early summer 
2022 ($4,000). $13,407 spent to date on design/engineering out of $77,800 allocated. 

• Received notification of no award from USDA MPPEP proposal Nov 1 (which would have 
covered 20% of all construction costs). Another round of this grant funding to be 
announced shortly. 

• Consultant sent proposed facility plans & budget in Oct & Dec for an 8,000 sq. foot facility. 
We requested scaled down plan in the ~4,000 sq. foot range to reduce footprint and budget. 
Waiting on updated facility & infrastructure plans from consultant for water and sewer 
before final planning/cost estimates/bid process. Should have those this month.  

• Presented project overview to Town of Boone Town Council in Sept. Relayed the funding 
challenges of the project. Water and sewer access will have to be provided by Town. Town 
in support of the project and alluded to some financial and/or other support related to 
sewer/water infrastructure. Indicated that they would like to see plans and cost estimates 
before committing. Ordinance would have to be modified/amended related to annexation. 

• High Country Council of Governments working on an EDA proposal to partially fund 
water/sewer infrastructure. Will be applying for an ARC construction grant in March 2023 
to seek additional funding due to projected construction cost increases for the project. 

 
This report was given for information only and, therefore, no action was required. 

NEW RIVER CONSERVANCY PRESENTATION 
Dr. Elizabeth Underwood, Executive Director of New River Conservancy, and Katie Krogmeier, 
New River Conservancy, presented an overview of the goals and objectives of the New River 
Conservancy and the restoration projects in Watauga County. 
 
Dr. Underwood stated that the New River Conservancy began as a result of legislation signed by 
President Ford in 1976 designating the New River as a National Scenic River.  The Conservancy 
performs restoration projects, river clean-ups, water quality monitoring and acquires land as well 
as provides land stewardship, public policy and works with higher education.  The Conservancy 
holds the New River Symposium which is a multidisciplinary conference held biennially in the 
New River watershed.  The Conservancy has utilized over 6,800 volunteers to retrieve over 13,000 
tires and over 422,000 pounds of trash from the New River.  The Conservancy has served as a 
river builder since 1998 with over 864,500 shrubs and trees planted and over 104 miles of stream 
planted.  Dr. Underwood also shared information on the New River Trail. 
 
Ms. Krogmeier presented information on their Boone Creek Temple Restoration project.  Ms. 
Krogmeier stated that there was currently a failing culvert, lack of riparian buffer, and erosion and 
sedimentation issues as well as obstructions in the floodplain of Boone Creek which runs onto 
County property where the compound lot and the Agricultural Extension building is located.  A 

020723 BCC Meeting

4



restoration project for this creek would prevent property loss, due to erosion, prevent future repair 
costs such as to the sewage line or culvert, mitigate flooding pressures, and increase water quality.  
Proposed solutions would be to fix the culvert on the Temple of the High Country property and 
reroute the stream for daylighting on the County’s property, including building a bridge over the 
stream.  Adding in-stream structures as well as removing the wall and other debris within the 
floodplain, repairing erosion on the downstream culvert and planting vegetation would also be 
included as part of the restoration project.  Ms. Krogmeier stated that two grants were being sought 
which required the protection, via a Declaration of Covenant & Restrictions (DCR), of the restored 
area. 
 
Ms. Krogmeier requested the County’s support of the project, including a letter of support and 
agreeance to the DCR.  Support was also sought for the comprehensive New River Water Trail. 
 
A proposed letter of support would be considered at a future meeting. 

ACCEPTANCE OF 2ND ROUND OF FY 2023 RURAL OPERATING ASSISTANCE 
PROGRAM (ROAP) FUNDS 
On behalf of Mr. Craig Hughes, AppalCART Director, County Manager Geouque stated that a 
second allocation of Rural Assistance Operating Program (ROAP) funding was available.  The 
additional funding of $31,647 would increase the County’s total funding to $194,612.   The revised 
funding amount was broken down into three categories, 1) $75,348 for Elderly and Disabled 
Transportation Assistance Program, 2) $16,414 for Employment, and 3) $102,850 for Rural 
General Public. 
 
Commissioner Wallin, seconded by Commissioner Russell, moved to accept the second allocation 
of ROAP funding in the amount of $31,647. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

TAX MATTERS 
A. Monthly Collections Report 

 

On behalf of Mr. Larry Warren, Tax Administrator, County Manager Geouque presented the Tax 
Collections Report for the month of December 2022.  The report was presented for information 
only and, therefore, no action was required. 
 

B. Refunds and Releases 
 

On behalf of Mr. Larry Warren, Tax Administrator, County Manager Geouque presented the 
Refunds and Releases Report for December 2022 for Board approval: 
 

TO BE TYPED IN MINUTE BOOK 
 

020723 BCC Meeting

5



Commissioner Castle, seconded by Commissioner Eggers, moved to approve the Refunds and 
Releases Report for December 2022 as presented. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

PROPOSED 2023 “YEAR OF THE TRAIL” PROCLAMATION 
Mr. Eric Smallwood, Parks and Recreation Director, presented a proposed proclamation for the 
Year of the Trail.  The Proclamation was a statewide effort to raise awareness and an opportunity 
to showcase, promote, and celebrate our state’s extensive trail systems.  Chairman Turnbow read 
the proclamation. 
 
Commissioner Russell, seconded by Commissioner Wallin, moved to adopt the Year of the Trail 
proclamation as presented by Mr. Smallwood. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

AMENDMENT TO THE AGENDA 
County Manager Geouque requested the Board amend the agenda to include personnel matters in 
the closed session. 
 
Commissioner Eggers, seconded by Commissioner Castle, moved to a discussion under personnel 
matters to the scheduled closed session portion of the meeting. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 
A. Proposed Dates for Annual Pre-Budget Retreat 

 

County Manager Geouque presented the proposed dates for the Annual Pre-Budget Retreat of 
February 9 and 10 or February 16 and 17.  The proposed times were from 12:00-7:00 P.M. for 
Thursday and 9:00 A.M.-1:00 P.M. for Friday.  Two days were required for the Retreat; however, 
the dates and times could be adjusted, if needed. 
 
By consensus, the Board agreed to set schedule the Annual Pre-Budget Retreat on the dates of 
Thursday, February 9, from 12:00 to 7:00 P.M. and Friday, February 10, 2023, from 9:00 A.M. to 
1:00 P.M. 
 

B. Proposed Dates for Budget Work Sessions 
 

County Manager Geouque presented the proposed dates for two budget work sessions held 
annually.  The work sessions were scheduled after the Manager’s proposed budget would be 

020723 BCC Meeting

6



presented at the first meeting in May and prior to the public hearing to allow citizen comment on 
the proposed budget which was at the second meeting in May.  The proposed dates for the budget 
work sessions were May 4 and 5 or May 11 and 12.  The proposed times were from 12:00–8:00 
P.M. for the first session and 9:00 A.M.–1:00 P.M. for the second session.  Times and dates could 
be adjusted, if needed. 
 
By consensus, the Board agreed to set the schedule for budget work sessions with the first to be 
on Thursday, May 4, from 12:00 P.M. to 8:00 P.M. and the second on Friday, May 5, 2023, from 
9:00 A.M. to 1:00 P.M. 
 

C. Boards and Commissions  
 

County Manager Geouque presented the following: 
 
Economic Development Commission 
The Economic Development Commission (EDC) Articles of Association were recently amended 
to reflect a reorganization of the membership.  The EDC, when all appointments were made, would 
consist of eleven (11) members - eight (8) would be standing seats representing organizations, and 
three (3) would be at-large seats appointed by the Board of Commissioners. 
 
The eight (8) standing seat representatives are listed below: 
 

Watauga County Board of Commissioners Larry Turnbow Chairman 

Boone Town Council Tim Futrelle Mayor 

Blowing Rock Town Council Pete Gherini Council Member 

Beech Mountain Town Council Barry Kaufman Mayor 

Seven Devils Town Council Bob Bertini Citizen designated by Town 
Council 

Appalachian State University Matthew Dockham Director of External Affairs & 
Community Relations 

Blowing Rock Chamber of Commerce Charles Hardin President and CEO 

Boone Area Chamber of Commerce David Jackson President and CEO 
 

Three At-Large appointments were needed. 
 
The County Manager stated that volunteer applications were received from the following 
expressing interest in serving on the EDC as an at-large appointee:  Jane Lee Rankin, Kelly Coffey, 
Dan Meyer, Virginia Lee Wallace, Angela King, and Suzanne Livesay. 
 
Chairman Turnbow, seconded by Commissioner Russell, moved to appoint Jane Lee Rankin to 
serve as an At-Large member on the Economic Development Commission. 
  

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

 

020723 BCC Meeting

7



Commissioner Castle, seconded by Commissioner Eggers, moved to appoint Dan Meyer to serve 
as an At-Large member on the Economic Development Commission. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

 
Commissioner Wallin, seconded by Chairman Turnbow, moved to appoint Suzanne Livesay to 
serve as an At-Large member on the Economic Development Commission. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

 
Commissioner Appointments to the Watauga County Planning Board and Boone Rural Fire 
Protection Service District Board 
 
County Manager Geouque stated that each Commissioner nominates a representative to the Boone 
Rural Fire Protection Service District Board and the Watauga County Planning Board whose terms 
were to run concurrent with the term of the appointing Commissioner.  Planning Board members 
must live within the appointing Commissioner’s District and action must be taken by the entire 
Board of Commissioners to make these appointments.  Boone Rural Fire Protection Service 
District Board members must own property and reside within the Fire Service District. 
 
Commissioner Russell tabled his appointment to the Planning Board to a future meeting. 
 
Commissioner Russell, seconded by Commissioner Wallin, moved to appoint Lee Stroupe to the 
Boone Rural Fire Protection Service District Board as representatives of District 2. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

 
Commissioner Appointments to Various Boards & Commissions 
County Manager Geouque stated that Commissioners were appointed to various Boards and 
Commissioners each year. 
 
Chairman Turnbow presented the list of Boards & Commissions with proposed appointments. 
Some of the appointments were legal requirements that the Commissioners serve, and some were 
at the request of the agencies.    
 
The majority of these appointments could be made by the Chairman of the Board, although several 
of them do require Board action.  Therefore, it has been the practice for the Chairman to submit a 
list of appointments with Board action to approve the entire list.  If there was more than one 
nomination for a particular appointment, the Board could vote on each nomination separately.   
 
Chairman Turnbow presented the following for consideration: 
 
 

020723 BCC Meeting

8



Board/Commission Member 

Appalachian District Health Department Castle 

Appalachian Theatre Board of Trustees Ex-Officio Member Wallin 

AppalCART Authority Wallin 

Blue Ridge Resource Conservation & Development Area Turnbow 

Caldwell Comm. College &Technical Institute - Watauga Advisory Board Eggers 

Children’s Council Castle 

Child Protection Team Russell 

Cooperative Extension Advisory Leadership Board Castle 

Economic Development Commission (EDC) Turnbow 

Educational Planning Committee (2 appointees) Wallin & Russell 

EMS Advisory Committee Castle 

High Country Council of Governments 
   Executive Board 
   Rural Transportation Advisory Committee 

Turnbow 

Juvenile Crime Prevention Council (JCPC) Russell 

Humane Society Turnbow 

Library Board Eggers 

Motor Vehicle Valuation Review Committee BCC 

New River Service Authority Board Wallin 

Northwest Regional Housing Authority (five-year term expires Dec. 12, 
2024) 

Pat Vines 

POA Advisory Committee (Home & Community Care Block Grant) Eggers 

Sheriff’s Office Liaison  Turnbow 

Vaya Regional Board (Region 3) Russell & Wallin 

Social Services Advisory Board Wallin 

Watauga County Arts Council (added February 2020) Eggers 

Watauga County Fire Commission Turnbow 

Watauga County Personnel Advisory Committee Chair or 
Vice-Chair 

Watauga County Recreation Commission Russell 

Watauga Medical Center Board of Trustees Russell 

W.A.M.Y. Community Action Wallin 

Watauga Opportunities, Inc. Turnbow 

Workforce Development Board (WDB) Chairman 
 
 

020723 BCC Meeting

9



Commissioner Russell, seconded by Commissioner Wallin, moved to appoint Commissioners to 
serve on the various Boards and Commissions as listed above: 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

 
D. Announcements 

 

County Manager Geouque announced that the Blowing Rock Chamber invited the Commissioners 
to attend a meet and greet reception for newly elected officials on January 17, 2023, from 5:00 PM 
to 6:30 PM.  Unfortunately, the Chamber overlooked that the date was the same time as the 
ongoing County Commissioner’s Board meeting.  The Chamber encouraged the Board to please 
come by if the ongoing meeting adjourned early. 

PUBLIC COMMENT 

There was no public comment. 

CLOSED SESSION 
At 6:53 P.M., Commissioner Castle, seconded by Commissioner Wallin, moved to enter Closed 
Session to discuss Attorney/Client Matters, per G. S. 143-318.11(a)(3) and Personnel Matters, per 
G. S. 143-318.11(a)(6). 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

 
Commissioner Castle, seconded by Commissioner Russell, moved to resume the open meeting at 
9:04 P.M. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

ADJOURN 
Commissioner Russell, seconded by Commissioner Castle, moved to adjourn the meeting at 
9:04 P.M. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

 
 
Larry Turnbow, Chairman 
 
 
ATTEST: 
Anita J. Fogle, Clerk to the Board 

020723 BCC Meeting

10



AGENDA ITEM 3: 

APPROVAL OF THE FEBRUARY 7, 2023, AGENDA 
 
 
 
 
  

020723 BCC Meeting

11



Blank Page 
 
 

020723 BCC Meeting

12



AGENDA ITEM 4: 

W.A.M.Y. PRESENTATION 

MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Representatives from WAMY will update the Board on their housing efforts.  The report is for 
information only; therefore, no action is required at this time.  
 
 
 
 
 
  

020723 BCC Meeting

13



Watauga Housing Coalition 

The Watauga Housing Coalition was formed to perform repairs on homes to make them safer for 
the families and, in many cases, to make them ready for weatherization.  The funding is made up 
of private donations, local government, and foundations. Watauga County granted WAMY 
$10,000 toward projects in Watauga County this year.  This was very helpful, but as you can see, 
the need is so much greater than our funding could meet this year.  

Completed Projects: 

1) Elderly woman raising her small granddaughter. Her income is only $900 per month.  
She needed major home repairs, including a porch, floor repairs and more which were 
completed by a group of volunteers from a local church.  We also helped with brush 
removal to make her entrance into the home safer. 

2) Elderly lady with some physical disabilities who is also caring for her aging mother.  
Combined income is around $1700 per month.  We were able to use volunteers and 
Coalition funding to work on a bridge, deck and new stairs to the entrance to their home – 
see Betty Lou’s story.  

3) We helped three people with heating systems that did not qualify for our federal program 
for various reasons.  One was an 82 year old man with an income of only $800 per 
month, Another was an elderly couple in their 70s.  The husband has cancer and their 
combined income is only $1500 per month.   

4) We performed a water remediation repair for a couple with a gentleman who has 
dementia.  He has had several surgeries and his wife takes care of him.   

The Waiting List: 

• Clients are 73 & 78 - roof leaking - income $1250 combined 
• Client is late 60's - roof leaking, needs kitchen and bathroom flooring repairs - income is 

$870 per month 
• Disabled client in late 60's in wheelchair - needs ramp and floor repair - income is $890  
• Client is early 80's - roof leaking in several spots - income is $690 
• Elderly mother and disabled daughter living in small mobile home - roof leaks, needs 

ramp, door replacement and floor repairs - incomes $1000 combined 
• Man in his late 70's in desperate need of windows and flooring. He uses a wheelchair and 

walker in the small mobile home - income is $725 each month 
• Multi-generational household - great grandmother, grandmother, daughter and son in law 

with 3 children under 3. Home needs a new roof, flooring, repairs to the outside entry, 
doors, several windows - income for the family is less than $40,000 

• Elderly lady in her 70's in poor health – previous fires - needs her chimney cleaned and 
lined – also needs flooring repairs and windows 

• Elderly woman in her 60's needs handicap ramp to home, and new roof.  Inside of mobile 
home also needs work - estimate of over $20,000. Income is less than $700 per month 

• Older man with an injured back and a colostomy bag– needs a new roof & repairs to 
furnace – still trying to work making around $900 per month. 

020723 BCC Meeting

14



• Elderly disabled grandmother and mentally challenged daughter trying to raise 2 children 
- leaking roof, damaged flooring, inadequate windows and ceiling damage.  

• Single elderly lady trying to care for her daughter fighting addiction - needs a new 
furnace and new sheetrock due to a leaking roof; needs electrical upgrades, underpinning 
and insulation - income is around $1900 

• Family of 4 in need of heating repairs and a new door - Mom is going to school and 
working, Dad is disabled. Daughters are 9 and 8. Income is less than $40,000 per year 

• Late 50’s disabled lady living alone in small mobile home park, uses lift and cane - needs 
bathroom repairs, flooring repairs, and has several leaks around the home; Income is less 
than $900 per month. 

• Couple in their late 70’s - need a handicap shower, a new roof, water leaks have caused 
issues in the kitchen, bedroom, and bathroom, repairs to the siding  and they need some 
windows replaced - income $1500 combined 

• Multigenerational household; 3 disabled older people; 1 mentally challenged brother; 1 
single father to small daughter trying to work to make ends meet.  Home needs HVAC 
repair/replacement; new windows; mold mitigation, electrical repairs, window and door 
repairs - income for entire household is less than 200% of poverty for family of 6 

• Early 60’s disabled female - needs a new roof, furnace repair/service, and new door - 
income is less than $800 per month. 

• Almost completely blind man and his wife in late 60’s – needs a roof - income for both is 
around $750 per month 

• Man with several disabilities trying to care for aging mother - living in a mobile home 
that needs kitchen, bathroom, flooring and water line repairs - Income for both is $1500 

• Middle 50’s disabled lady – needs a roof and flooring due to leaks - Makes $1200/month 
• Elderly lady recovering from a broken back - in desperate need of a new porch and steps 

- income is only $725 per month 

Betty Lou 

Betty Lou came to WAMY for help paying one of her bills under the COVID relief funding that 
WAMY had.  While there, we learned that she had some housing needs that she had been trying 
to get help with for years.  She had been to several other places for assistance, but her situation 
was so complicated, her request remained on hold or was never answered. The application was 
given to the housing department and was approved, but she went on our waiting list. In Watauga 
County, the waiting list can get pretty backed up because we have less funding available in this 
county.  

Fortunately, Betty Lou fit into several of the categories of the grants we had available at the time. 
Her home was an older home but was in good shape. The home’s driveway is a little away from 
the home, making it necessary to have a walking bridge to cross the creek. The client was taking 
care of her aging mother and the steps and deck to the home from the bridge were dangerous to 
most people, even more so for an elderly 89-year-old lady. 

Betty Lou was fearful that she would not be able to continue caring for her mother if she couldn’t 
get the stairs and deck repaired.  WAMY sent one of its best contractors out to give an estimate 

020723 BCC Meeting

15



on the project. And though it was a big project, he gave a fair estimate and said he would help in 
any way to make this happen. After several meetings and funding from 4 different sources, the 
project was approved.  There were some bumps along with way, but each hurdle was met with a 
positive outlook and produced a positive outcome. 

In the end the client received the much-needed entrance to her home. Her mother can now feel 
safe going up and down the steps. Betty Lou has invited everyone for coffee this coming summer 
to enjoy the beautiful views from her new deck. 

 

020723 BCC Meeting

16



Other Housing Programs 

Housing Preservation Grant: 

In Watauga County, we assisted 10 families and used our Housing Preservation Grant in the 
following ways: 

• Restore Water Service 
• Water Leak Remediation 
• Weatherization (heating leveraged) 
• Weatherization (home repair leveraged) 
• Roof 
• Deck/Bridge/Egress 
• Structure/Foundation 

Weatherization/Heating & Air 

• 13 Families in Watauga County were assisted with Weatherization and Heating & Air 
Replacement/Repair services. 

 
 

 

020723 BCC Meeting

17



Blank Page 
 
 

020723 BCC Meeting

18



AGENDA ITEM 5: 

4H PRESENTATION 

MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Ms. Kate Payne will provide a presentation regarding 4H.  Staff would recommend any discussions 
regarding 4H be led by Cooperative Extension Director Jim Hamilton.   
 
 
 
 
  

020723 BCC Meeting

19



WATAUGA COUNTY 4H
H E A D  H E A R T  H A N D S  H E A L T H  

 

020723 BCC Meeting

20



4H is known for giving youth the opportunity to “Learn by
Doing” and meet new friends that share interests. You can
participate in projects where you make something, develop a
skill, and raise and/or train animals, 

WHAT IS 4H?
4-H IS THE LARGEST YOUTH ORGANIZATION IN THE
UNITED STATES WITH MORE THAN 7 MILLION
PARTICIPANTS.

WATAUGA COUNTY 4H |  2023

020723 BCC Meeting

21



BENEFITS OF 4H
More likely to experience positive development
and less likely to participate in risk behaviors such
as stealing, illegal drugs, smoking, or alcohol use.
More likely to succeed in school, achieving higher
grades. 
4 times more likely to make positive contributions
to their community. 
2 times more likely to make healthier choices
(nutrition and physical activity). 
2 times more likely to participate in STEM
(Science, Technology, Engineering, Math)
activities. 
2 times more likely to be civically engaged and
are more likely to communicate more effectively
and maturely.

According to several studies, including ones
conducted by Colorado and Tufts Universities, youth
who participate in 4-H programming are: 

020723 BCC Meeting

22



99%
OF NORTH CAROLINA  COUNTIES
ALREADY HAVE A 4H CLUB OR MULTIPLE.

THERE ARE OVER 265,000 CHILDREN IN NC ENROLLED
IN 4H.

SINCE JANUARY 1, 2023, THE START OF WATAUGA'S
NEW 4H CLUB...

BERTIE COUNTY IS NOW THE ONLY COUNTY WITHOUT
AN ACTIVE 4H CLUB. 

 

020723 BCC Meeting

23



WHY IS 4H IMPORTANT?
 

 

020723 BCC Meeting

24



55-64
27.2%

65-74
25.6%

45-54
18.5%

75 & OVER
12.8%

35-44
10%

25-34
5.2%

https://www.nass.usda.gov/Statistics_by_State/North_Carolina/Publications/Annual_Statistical_Bulletin/AgStat/NCHighlights.pdf

In 5 years we will lose 12.8% of operators
In 10 years we will lose an additional 25.6%
In 20 years we will lose over 65% of our farm
operators. 

According to National Agriculture Statistic Service via
the USDA, the average farm operator is 58 years of
age.

The average life expectancy in America is 77 years of
age. 

If we do not get kids involved in farming and
agriculture... 

Based on 2021 statistics....

020723 BCC Meeting

25



SOURCE OF NC FARM INCOME

LIVESTOCK, DAIRY,
& POULTRY

69.5%

CROPS OTHER CROPS

23% 7.5%

020723 BCC Meeting

26



 

WATAUGA COUNTY 4H

020723 BCC Meeting

27



2023 PROJECTS

CHICK TO CHICKEN
Youth participants get 2

chicks to raise. They
attend monthy workshops
where they learn to raise

and care for their animals.
The project concludes

with showing their
chickens at the Avery

County Fair. 

BEEF PRODUCTION
Youth participants get

their own bottle calf, and
attend monthly

workshops where they
learn how to care for,
raise, and show their

animal. At the conclusion
their animal is sold and

the youth receive the
money from their sale. 

EQUINE EXPLORERS
Youth will learn about

horsemanship, anatomy,
tack, grooming, and more.

This is an unmounted
club. Youth will work with
horses but will not need
to ride or own a horse to
participate in monthly

meetings. 

020723 BCC Meeting

28



2023 PROJECTS

SHOOTING SPORTS
Youth can choose from
Rifle, Shotgun, and/or
archery.  Focusing on

firearm education and
safety, participants will
have the opportunity to

compete in regional,
district, and state

competitions.  

TRADES TRAINING
Youth will meet with local tradesmen 
 and women to learn the basics. They

will pick a small project at the
beginning that encompasses all of the

construction trades to complete
together throughout the year. Trades

include but are not limited to
Electrical, Plumbing, HVAC, Carpentry,

Painting, Masonry, etc. 

020723 BCC Meeting

29



A VISION FOR OUR
YOUTH 
WATAUGA COUNTY 4H

020723 BCC Meeting

30



FUNDING
4-H youth development is an important
part of the total Cooperative Extension
System’s educational program. From the
very beginning it was intended that the
Cooperative Extension Service would
provide for the teaching of youth.
Funding for Cooperative Extension
programs is provided at the federal level
by the U.S. Department of Agriculture
and at the state and local government
levels. In addition, other private sources
may provide private funding to support
certain programs.

4H FUNDING

020723 BCC Meeting

31



BENEFITS OF 4H
More likely to experience positive development
and less likely to participate in risk behaviors such
as stealing, illegal drugs, smoking, or alcohol use.
More likely to succeed in school, achieving higher
grades. 
4 times more likely to make positive contributions
to their community. 
2 times more likely to make healthier choices
(nutrition and physical activity). 
2 times more likely to participate in STEM
(Science, Technology, Engineering, Math)
activities. 
2 times more likely to be civically engaged and
are more likely to communicate more effectively
and maturely.

According to several studies, including ones
conducted by Colorado and Tufts Universities, youth
who participate in 4-H programming are: 

020723 BCC Meeting

32



A COUNTY FACILITY GEARED TOWARDS AGRICULTURE 

 

FOR OUR YOUTH
WATAUGA COUNTY COULD OFFER...

WATAUGA COUNTY 4H |  2023

020723 BCC Meeting

33



NORTH CAROLINA
AGRICLUTURAL
CENTERS &
HORSE COMPLEXES

WNC AG CENTER IN FLETCHER
JAMES B HUNT HORSE COMPLEX IN RALEIGH
EASTERN AG CENTER IN WILLIAMSTON 
SOUTHEASTERN NC AG CENTER IN LUMBERTON  

STATE OPEREATED

HALIFAX COUNTY 4H HORSE COMPLEX
SURRY COUNTY MOODY MEMORIAL HORSE RING
JOHNSON COUNTY LIVESTOCK ARENA
PAMLICO COUNTY BRINSON MEMORIAL ARENA
WAKE COUNTY (PROJECT IN WORKS NOW)
DAVIDSON COUNTY
CABARRUS ARENA& EVENT CENTER
GREAT SMOKIES ARENA IN WAYNESVILLE
GRANVILLE COUNTY LIVESTOCK ARENA
LENOIR COUNTY LIVESTOCK ARENA

 

COUNTY OPERATED FACILITIES

020723 BCC Meeting

34



HALIFAX 
COUNTY 

The Halifax County 4-H Horse and
Livestock Complex in Halifax, NC was
constructed with the primary purpose of
hosting agricultural, educational, and
community events that provide a service
to the residents of Halifax County. The
Complex consists of two (2) outdoor
arenas, twelve (12) RV Hookup locations
including electricity and water, a
restroom facility, concession stand, a
sixteen (16) stall barn, and several miles
of wooded, marked trails.

FACILITY USES

020723 BCC Meeting

35



020723 BCC Meeting

36



Our Board

HANNAH OSBORNE

A past 04-07 Watauga 4H
member, Hannah was apart of

one of the last 4H clubs this
County has had. A native to the
High Country, Hannah and her

Husband raise their two
daughters on their farm.  

Vice President

KATE PAYNE

Founder of the High Country
Rodeo Association, Kate has a

passion for the western lifestyle
and the benefits it brings to our

community and children. 

President

ROBIN TOMER

A equine enthusiast Robin has
been participating with her two

young daughters in 4H in
Wilkesboro. 

Secretary

020723 BCC Meeting

37



CONTACT US
MAILING ADDRESS

971 W King St, Boone, NC 28607

EMAIL ADDRESS

watco4h@gmail.com

PHONE NUMBER

(828) 773-0252

020723 BCC Meeting

38



AGENDA ITEM 6: 

BLUE RIDGE CONSERVANCY PRESENTATION 

MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Ms. Wendy Patoprsty, Middle Fork Greenway Director, will request the Board approve a letter of 
commitment for at least a 25% match and completion of the project within a 3-year time frame for 
the NC Recreational Trails Program (RTP) grant.  Blue Ridge Conservancy is providing the match.  
The letter would state that the Middle Fork Greenway is on target to be completed in the next three 
years and that the PARTF grant was funded.    
 
Board action is required to authorize the drafting and approval of the letter of commitment.   
 
 
 
 
  

020723 BCC Meeting

39



                                                           

February 10, 2023 

To: Watauga County Board of Commissioners 

From: Wendy Patoprsty, Blue Ridge Conservancy 

Re: Middle Fork Greenway Grant Application 

Dear Watauga County Commissioners,  

Thank you for your continued support of the Middle Fork Greenway Project. With your 

permission, the Middle Fork Greenway (MFG) team would like to apply for an NC Recreational 

Trails Program (RTP) grant due February 17, 2023. In 2018, Watauga County was awarded 

$100K through this grant for the MFG. It closed out in 2022 with the completion of the 321 

trailhead segment of the trail.  

If awarded, the Feb 2023 RTP grant will go toward the newest tract of land purchased by Blue 

Ridge Conservancy for the Boone Gorge Park development along the Middle Fork Greenway. 

According to Eric Smallwood, Watauga County Parks and Recreation Director, Watauga County 

is not applying for this grant on any other projects, so there would be no local competition.  

High Country Council of Governments (COG) has agreed to administer this grant if awarded. The 

COG is administering two additional MFG grants for the development of the Boone Gorge Park, 

NC PARTF, and NC WRD grants, totaling $1 million for Watauga County.  

We are grateful for the partnership with Watauga County on the Middle Fork Greenway. It is 

essential for this legacy community project that will be used and enjoyed for generations to 

come.  

Sincerely,  

 
Wendy Patoprsty 
Blue Ridge Conservancy 
Middle Fork Greenway Director 

020723 BCC Meeting

40



AGENDA ITEM 7: 

NEW RIVER CONSERVANCY PRESENTATION 
 
Ms. Katie Krogmeier, Restoration Director for the New River Conservancy, will make a formal 
request to the Board regarding the Boone Creek Temple Restoration Project.  Ms. Krogmeier will 
request the following: 
  
1) Permission to implement the stream restoration project on County property (parcel IDs -  2900-
59-4808-000,  2900-69-5897-000, &  2900-69-5774-000). 
 
2) Watauga County to place a DCR (Declaration of Covenant and Restrictions) on each parcel. 
The placement will vary depending on the parcel, but it must cover the riparian zone (up to 50 ft) 
around Boone Creek.  
 - It is recommended that the area of County land, on parcel 2900-59-4808-00, that is in between 
the Temple property and Poplar Grove Connector Road be covered in its full extent. 
 
3) Watauga County to hold a conservation easement on the riparian zones of Temple of the High 
Country Property. 
 
4) Provide a letter of support to New River Conservancy discussing what is agreed upon above. 
 
Board action is required to approve the requested items in support of the Boone Creek Temple 
Restoration Project.    
 
 

  

020723 BCC Meeting

41



 

 WATAUGA COUNTY 
 
Administration Building, Suite 205 – 814 West King Street – Boone, NC 28607 – (828) 265-8000 

TDD 1-800-735-2962 – Voice 1-800-735-8262 – FAX (828) 264-3230 
 
 
 

February 7, 2023 
 
 
Katie Krogmeier, Restoration Director 
New River Conservancy 
PO Box 1480 
West Jefferson, NC 28694 
 
RE: Letter of Support of the Boone Creek Temple Restoration Project 
 
Dear Miss Krogmeier, 
 
Watauga County is proud to support the Boone Creek Temple restoration project. The community 
has been aware of the condition of Boone Creek for many years and we understand that the creek 
and floodplain are in need of restoration. 
 
Boone Creek is actively eroding, disconnected from the floodplain, and contributing sediment 
pollution and large volumes of stormwater to the New River. Additionally, active erosion of the 
banks has undermined Watauga County, and Temple of the High Country property, as well as 
threatened sewer infrastructure running parallel to the creek. 
 
Though the scope of the proposed Temple Restoration project is not entirely within Watauga 
County property, the county is responsible for maintaining the parcels where Boone Creek flows 
along this project site. Watauga County pledges to support the project by providing access to 
county property within the proposed project site for restoration work and by placing and 
maintaining a Declaration of Covenant & Restrictions along the riparian corridor of the restored 
area. Watauga County will also hold the conservation easement on the riparian zone for the Temple 
property. We understand that by restoring this section of Boone Creek will prevent future property 
loss and damage, increase the water quality, and support the aquatic habitat of Boone Creek. Not 
only will the stream and floodplain function more efficiently, but aquatic life will now have access 
to the upstream section of Boone Creek where vital life cycle processes can occur.  
 
Watauga County is happy to express support for the restoration of Boone Creek at the Temple of 
the High Country, and we look forward to the implementation of the project. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
Deron Geouque 
County Manager 
 

   OFFICE OF THE 
COUNTY MANAGER 

 

020723 BCC Meeting

42



Watauga County 
2.7.2023 

Katie Krogmeier
Restoration Director, New River Conservancy

Watauga County 

Upcoming Projects From New 
River Conservancy  

020723 BCC Meeting

43



At This Time…  We Could Use Your Support!  
New River Water Trail

1. Support for the comprehensive New River Water Trail

Boone Creek (Kraut Creek) Restoration
1. Will you grant permission for New River Conservancy to conduct 

restoration on county property?
2. Will Watauga County put a DCR (Declaration of Covenant & Restrictions) 

on county parcels? 
3. Will Watauga County hold a conservation easement on the riparian zone of 

the Temple property?

020723 BCC Meeting

44



New River Water Trail
020723 BCC Meeting

45



020723 BCC Meeting

46



Boone Creek Temple 
Restoration

020723 BCC Meeting

47



020723 BCC Meeting

48



- Failing culvert upstream
- lack of riparian buffer
- erosion & sedimentation

Current Conditions
020723 BCC Meeting

49



- obstruction in the floodplain

Current Conditions
020723 BCC Meeting

50



020723 BCC Meeting

51



- erosion & sedimentation
- manhole exposed
- property loss

Current Conditions 020723 BCC Meeting

52



- erosion & sedimentation
- eroding around culvert downstream

Current Conditions
020723 BCC Meeting

53



- prevent property loss
- prevent future repair costs that may incur:

-> repair to sewage line
-> repair of culvert as it becomes compromised

- mitigate flooding pressure from Boone Creek
- increase water quality
- provide community education

Implementing this restoration project will:
020723 BCC Meeting

54



- fix culvert upstream (Temple & Galileo’s property) & reroute 
stream for daylighting (County property)

-> build bridge over stream instead
- add in-stream structures
- remove wall and other debris within floodplain
- repair erosion on downstream culvert and protect from future 

issues
- plant vegetation

Our Solution
020723 BCC Meeting

55



- Going after two grants that both require protection of 
restored area

-> NCLWF
-> DWR

- Currently getting estimates and a conceptual plan made
- Have support from Town of Boone and Watauga County 

Cooperative Extension

Current Stage of Project
020723 BCC Meeting

56



At This Time…  We Could Use Your Support!  
New River Water Trail

1. Support for the comprehensive New River Water Trail 

Boone Creek (Kraut Creek) Restoration
1. Will you grant permission for New River Conservancy to conduct 

restoration on county property?
2. Will Watauga County put a DCR (Declaration of Covenant & Restrictions) 

on county parcels? 
3. Will Watauga County hold a conservation easement on the riparian zone of 

the Temple property?

020723 BCC Meeting

57



Thank you for letting us present to you!    

Q&A 

020723 BCC Meeting

58



AGENDA ITEM 8: 

WATAUGA COUNTY PUBLIC LIBRARY ANNUAL REPORT 
Ms. Monica Caruso, County Librarian, will present the Watauga County Public Library Annual 
Report.   
 
The report is for information only; therefore, no action is required. 
 
 
 

  

020723 BCC Meeting

59



Watauga County 
Public Library

2022

Highlights  

020723 BCC Meeting

60



PANDEMIC RESTRICTIONS EASE

• Continued to use DIY sneeze guards throughout building until the summer, at which time we had some beautiful wood frames made
for all public service desks ( thanks to Wink Winkelmann) 

• In March, we lifted the mask mandate 
• Beginning in August, we began giving away Covid tests obtained from Apphealthcare (554 boxes distributed to date)

• Continued to keep hand sanitizer at all desks/self-check/OPACs and had disposable masks available
• Continued to offer Touchless Library Card 

• Curbside always available 

020723 BCC Meeting

61



Youth 
Services

HP 2nd graders visiting library 

Storywalks®®Appalachian Heritage Day The Grinch

Teen Action Group BeganDi-November Fun!

020723 BCC Meeting

62



Adult Services

“Here by the Owl” by Evan Smith as part of 
Boone 150 

Book Club for those with 
Intellectual/Developmental Disabilities 

NAMI High Country 

Health Insurance Enrollment Event

Volunteer Income 
Tax Assistance Wiley Cash – In partnership with 

ASU

NAMI Inclusivity Grant 

020723 BCC Meeting

63



WW 
Branch

Christmas Drive-Through Fair

Dulcimer Class – a huge success Book Club

TLC Head Start visit to Library Friends Basket Raffle

Gem Mining – SRP 

020723 BCC Meeting

64



LOCAL FUNDING

•

699,960

38,751

15,703

34,720

20,784

TOTAL = 807,218

County Friends/Endowment

Other Grants Donations

Fines/Fees

Expenditures 

714,643

28,325

37,615
27,494

TOTAL = 808,078

Personnel Operations Collections Programming

FY 2022Revenue 
020723 BCC Meeting

65



By the numbers 

2022 2021 2020 2019

Main     Branch Main   Branch Main Branch               Main      Branch

Library Cards: 32,587      1,465 30,553        1,410 28,864         1,378 27,502 1,355

Circulation:  183,297 15,264 159,078      14,473              145,560 10,552  154,545    16,178

Door Count 95,146 5,880 60,127         2,600         63,731         1,702 141,719      8,363

Programs 326 36 162               59                      285               30 1,095 101

Attendance 11,011 593 4,432               817                 4,408              305                 19,064     1,081

020723 BCC Meeting

66



Volunteers, 2022
Volunteers = 116

Volunteer Hours = 3981

This equates to $119,230 according to the Independent 
Sector, which allots volunteers $29.95 per hour  

020723 BCC Meeting

67



UNIQUE Grants, 2022 

Adapting Technology at ARL2nd Decodable Books Grant –
Blue Ridge Energy 

Covid-19 LSTA Response 
Mini Grant for PPE

Inclusion Grant

Community Inclusion grant for books 

New Microfilm Reader –
Bright Ideas Grant 

020723 BCC Meeting

68



Looking Ahead

STRATEGIC PLAN GOALS, 2022-2026  

• Organizational Excellence 

• Robust Services to Underserved Communities 

• Increased Access and Innovative Programming

• Build High Quality Print, Digital, and Technology Collections 

020723 BCC Meeting

69



Thank you to Watauga County for 
your partnership and support and to 

our County Maintenance 
Department! 

020723 BCC Meeting

70



AGENDA ITEM 9: 

MAINTENANCE MATTERS  
A. Bid Award Request for Hannah Building Roof 

MANAGER’S COMMENTS 
The County was awarded a State Capital Infrastructure Fund (SCIF) grant for the roof replacement 
on the County owned Hannah Building operated by the Health and Hunger Coalition.  The SCIF 
grant provided $100,000 for the replacement and the Hunger and Health Coalition has agreed to 
pay the difference.  Bids for the replacement of the membrane roof system were recently solicited 
and opened on January 9, 2023.   
 
Staff has reviewed the low bid and Alternate 1, 2 and 3 submitted by Triad Roofing Company, Inc. 
in the amount of $363,925.  Staff recommends the County award the roofing project to the low 
bidder, Triad Roofing Company, Inc. with the additional amount over the $100,000 SCIF grant to 
be paid by the Hunger and Health Coalition.   
 
  

020723 BCC Meeting

71



020723 BCC Meeting

72



020723 BC
C

 M
eeting73



020723 BCC Meeting

74



020723 BCC Meeting

75



020723 BCC Meeting

76



020723 BCC Meeting

77



020723 BCC Meeting

78



020723 BC
C

 M
eeting79



020723 BC
C

 M
eeting80



020723 BCC Meeting

81



020723 BCC Meeting

82



020723 BCC Meeting

83



020723 BCC Meeting

84



020723 BCC Meeting

85



020723 BCC Meeting

86



020723 BCC Meeting

87



020723 BCC Meeting

88



020723 BCC Meeting

89



020723 BCC Meeting

90



020723 BCC Meeting

91



020723 BCC Meeting

92



020723 BCC Meeting

93



020723 BCC Meeting

94



020723 BC
C

 M
eeting95



020723 BCC Meeting

96



020723 BCC Meeting

97



020723 BCC Meeting

98



020723 BC
C

 M
eeting99



020723 BC
C

 M
eeting

100



020723 BC
C

 M
eeting

101



020723 BCC Meeting

102



020723 BCC Meeting

103



020723 BCC Meeting

104



020723 BCC Meeting

105



020723 BCC Meeting

106



020723 BCC Meeting

107



020723 BCC Meeting

108



020723 BCC Meeting

109



020723 BCC Meeting

110



020723 BCC Meeting

111



020723 BCC Meeting

112



020723 BCC Meeting

113



020723 BCC Meeting

114



020723 BCC Meeting

115



020723 BCC Meeting

116



020723 BCC Meeting

117



020723 BCC Meeting

118



020723 BCC Meeting

119



020723 BCC Meeting

120



020723 BCC Meeting

121



020723 BCC Meeting

122



AGENDA ITEM 9: 

MAINTENANCE MATTERS  
B. Bid Award Request for Law Enforcement Center HVAC 

MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Muter Construction was selected by the County to replace roofs and HVAC equipment in several 
County buildings including: Courthouse, Administration, Human Services, Appalachian 
Enterprise Center and the Law Enforcement Center.   
 
The scope of work at the Law Enforcement Center includes retrofitting a new metal roof over a 
membrane roof and replacement of all HVAC units. Last week, the contractor alerted the County 
to a condition which they felt a Change Order was necessary.  Their subcontractor, Associated 
Heating, was unable to connect the existing central controls unit to the new HVAC units due to 
the age and obsolescence of the existing electronic controls system. The Contractor applied for a 
Change Order in the amount of $55,462.59 for replacing the DDC controls with a new Honeywell 
cloud-based system.  Staff reviewed and rejected the Change Order with an agreement that the 
new controls contractor would contract directly with the County to avoid the general contractor's 
mark up.   
 
It is imperative to replace the DDC Controls as they coordinate with the function of the HVAC 
equipment and a portion of the Life Safety systems throughout the Law Enforcement Center 
Campus.  The HVAC systems are currently operating on temporary controls; however, the Life 
Safety smoke exhaust system is inoperable until the new controls system is in place. 
 
Alpha Energy Solutions has submitted a $47,078 proposal to replace the existing Honeywell 
controls system with a new Honeywell cloud-based controller, wiring and sensors. The County 
has worked with the staff at Alpha for many years with good results and in fact had already met 
with Alpha to discuss replacing the controls system in 2022. 
 
Funds will come from the administrative contingency.  Staff recommends the Board accept the bid 
submitted by Alpha Energy Solutions, in the amount of $47,078 for replacement of the existing 
HVAC controls system at the Law Enforcement Center. 
 
 
 
  

020723 BCC Meeting

123



020723 BCC Meeting

124



020723 BCC Meeting

125



Blank Page 
 
 

020723 BCC Meeting

126



AGENDA ITEM 10: 

PARKS AND RECREATION OUT-OF-STATE TRAVEL REQUEST 

MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Mr. Eric Smallwood, Parks and Recreation Director, will request Board approval for Ms. Keron 
Poteat, Assistant Parks and Recreation Director, to travel to Hilton Head, SC, to make a 
presentation at the Professional Tennis Registry International Tennis Symposium. The travel dates 
are Saturday, February 4 - Wednesday, February 8, 2023.  All expenses are covered by Special 
Olympics and Keron will be using her personal vehicle.  Staff approved the request as no County 
funds were requested.   
 
Board approval is required to authorize the out-of-state travel after the fact. 
 
  

020723 BCC Meeting

127



020723 BCC Meeting

128



020723 BCC Meeting

129



020723 BCC Meeting

130



AGENDA ITEM 11: 

FINANCE MATTERS  
A. Proposed Audit Contract for Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2023 

MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Ms. Samantha Jones, Finance Director, will request the Board approve the Fiscal Year 2022-23 
audit contract and engagement letter with C. Randolph CPA, PLLC. The contract amount of 
$47,800 covers the annual audit.  Adequate funds are available to cover the expenditure. 
 
Board approval is required to accept the contract with C. Randolph, CPA, PLLC for the County’s 
Fiscal Year 2022-2023 audit in the amount not to exceed $47,800. 
 
 
 
  

020723 BCC Meeting

131



020723 BCC Meeting

132



020723 BCC Meeting

133



020723 BCC Meeting

134



020723 BCC Meeting

135



020723 BCC Meeting

136



020723 BCC Meeting

137



020723 BCC Meeting

138



020723 BCC Meeting

139



020723 BCC Meeting

140



020723 BCC Meeting

141



020723 BCC Meeting

142



020723 BCC Meeting

143



020723 BCC Meeting

144



020723 BCC Meeting

145



020723 BCC Meeting

146



020723 BCC Meeting

147



020723 BCC Meeting

148



020723 BCC Meeting

149



020723 BCC Meeting

150



AGENDA ITEM 11: 

FINANCE MATTERS  
B. Proposed Letter of Engagement for County Financials for Fiscal Year Ending 

June 30, 2023 

MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Ms. Samantha Jones will request the Board approve the engagement letter with Misty Watson, 
CPA, PLLC to write the County Financials in the amount of $10,000 for the Fiscal Year ending 
June 30, 2023.  Adequate funds are available to cover the expenditure. 
 
Board approval is required to accept the engagement letter with Misty Watson, CPA, PLLC to 
write the County Financials in the amount of $10,000. 
 
 
  

020723 BCC Meeting

151



MISTY D. WATSON, CPA, P.A. 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANT 

PO BOX 2122 
BOONE, NORTH CAROLINA 28607 

 
To Management 
Watauga County 
814 West King Street 
Boone, NC 28607 

We are pleased to confirm our acceptance and understanding of the services we are to provide for Watauga County 
(“the County”) for the year ended June 30, 2023. 

You have requested that we prepare the financial statements of the County as of and for the year ended June 30, 
2023 in the form prescribed by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board in accordance with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.  

Our Responsibilities 

The objective of our engagement is to prepare financial statements in accordance with the format prescribed by 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board and in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America based on information provided by you. We will conduct our engagement in accordance 
with Statements on Standards for Accounting and Review Services (SSARS) promulgated by the Accounting and 
Review Services Committee of the AICPA and will comply with the AICPA’s Code of Professional Conduct, including 
the ethical principles of integrity, objectivity, professional competence, and due care. 

We are not required to, and will not, verify the accuracy or completeness of the information you will provide to us 
for the engagement or otherwise gather evidence for the purpose of expressing an opinion or a conclusion. 
Accordingly, we will not express an opinion or a conclusion or provide any assurance on the financial statements. 

Our engagement cannot be relied upon to identify or disclose any financial statement misstatements, including 
those caused by fraud or error, or to identify or disclose any wrongdoing within the County or noncompliance with 
laws and regulations. 

Management Responsibilities 

The engagement to be performed is conducted on the basis that management acknowledges and understands that 
our role is to prepare financial statements in accordance with the format prescribed by Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board and accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Management has 
the following overall responsibilities that are fundamental to our undertaking the engagement to prepare your 
financial statements in accordance with SSARS: 

1) The selection of the format prescribed by Governmental Accounting Standards Board and accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America as the financial reporting framework to be applied in the 
preparation of financial statements. 

2) The design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.  

3) The prevention and detection of fraud. 

4) To ensure that the County complies with the laws and regulations applicable to its activities. 

5) The accuracy and completeness of the records, documents, explanations, and other information, including 
significant judgments, you provide to us for the engagement to prepare financial statements. 

6) To provide us with: 

a) Documentation, and other related information that is relevant to the preparation and presentation of the 
financial statements, 

b) Additional information that may be requested for the purpose of the preparation of the financial statements, 
and 

c) Unrestricted access to persons within the County of whom we determine necessary to communicate. 

020723 BCC Meeting

152



The financial statements will not be accompanied by a report. However, you agree that the financial statements will 
clearly indicate that no assurance is provided on them.  

Other Relevant Information 

Misty Watson is responsible for supervising the engagement.  

We estimate that our fees for these services will range from $8,000 to $10,000. The fee estimate is based on 
anticipated cooperation from your personnel and the assumption that unexpected circumstances will not be 
encountered during the work performed. If significant additional time is necessary, we will discuss it with you and 
arrive at a new fee estimate before we incur the additional costs. Our invoices for these fees will be rendered each 
month as work progresses and are payable on presentation.  

You agree to hold us harmless and to release, indemnify, and defend us from any liability or costs, including 
attorney’s fees, resulting from management’s knowing misrepresentations to us.  

We appreciate the opportunity to be of service to you and believe this letter accurately summarizes the significant 
terms of our engagement. If you have any questions, please let us know. If you agree with the terms of our 
engagement as described in this letter, please sign the enclosed copy and return it to us.  

Sincerely, 
 

 
Misty D. Watson, CPA PA 

This letter correctly sets forth the understanding of Watauga County. 

 
Management Signature:   
   
Title:     
 
Date:     

 

020723 BCC Meeting

153



Blank Page 
 
 

020723 BCC Meeting

154



AGENDA ITEM 12: 

MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 
A. Boards and Commissions  

 

MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Planning Board 
Each Commissioner nominates a representative to the Watauga County Planning Board whose 
terms run concurrent with the term of the appointing Commissioner.  The Planning Board members 
must live within the appointing Commissioner’s District and action must be taken by the entire 
Board of Commissioners to make these appointments.   
 
Commissioner Russell requests to reappoint Mr. Neil Hartley to represent his District.   
 
Tourism Development Authority 
The terms of Matt Vincent, Tina Houston and Lisa Cooper on the Watauga County Tourism 
Development Authority (TDA) will expire at the end of February.  All three board members are willing 
to continue to serve.  Mr. Vincent currently serves as the TDA Board Chair.   
 
The Board of Commissioners also appoints the TDA Chair.  It has been requested that Mr. Vincent be 
reappointed Chair, if reappointed to the TDA Board. 
 
These are first readings and, therefore, no action is required. 
  

020723 BCC Meeting

155



 

 
 

 
TO:   Watauga County Board of Commissioners  
   Deron Geouque, Watauga County Manager 
    
FROM:   Wright Tilley, Executive Director 
 
RE:   TDA Board Appointments 
 
DATE:    1/31/2023 

 
The Watauga County TDA Board seats currently occupied by Matt Vincent, Tina Houston and 
Lisa Cooper expire at the end of February.  All three board members have expressed an interest 
in continuing to serve on our board.  Matt currently serves as the board chair. 
 
I have not yet received an updated board application from Lisa Cooper, but hope to submit that 
at your next board meeting. 
 
Matt and Tina have submitted applications for board re-appointment and those are attached. 
They are two of our most involved board members.  Both bring different and valuable expertise 
to the board with Matt being a lifelong resident and leader in the construction industry and 
Tina owning and operating restaurants and a catering business.  I would highly encourage you 
all to re-appoint both to another three-year term on the board. 
 
If reappointed, we would like to request that Matt Vincent also be reappointed as the Chair of 
the Watauga TDA Board. 
 
Best Regards, 
 
Wright 
 
 
 
 

020723 BCC Meeting

156



Volunteer Application 
Watauga County Boards And Commissions 

If you are a Watauga County resident, at least 18 years old, and willing to volunteer your time and 
expertise to your community, please complete the application below and dick on Print Form. 
Please sign and mail or fax to: 

Name: 

Home Address: 

City: 

Telephone: (H) 

Email: 

Place of Employment: 

Job Title: 

Watauga County Commissioners' Office 
814 West King Street, Suite 205 

Boone, NC 28607 
Phone: (828) 265-8000 
Fax: (828) 264-3230 

Zip: 

(W) (Fax) 

In Order To Assure County wide Representation Please Indicate Your Township Of Residence: 

{ Bald Mountain { Stony Fork { Watauga 

{ NewRiver { Brushy Fork { Cove Creek 

{ Beaver Dam { Meat Camp { Shawneehaw 

{ Blue Ridge { Blowing Rock { Laurel Creek 

{ Elk { North Fork { Boone 

In addition, Please Indicate If You Live In One Of The Following Areas: 

{ Foscoe-Grandfather Community { Valle Cruds Historic District 

{ Howards Creek Watershed { Winklers Creek Watershed 

{ South Fork New River Watershed r Extraterritorial Area 

We Ask Your Help In Assuring Diversity Of Membership By Age, Gender, And Race, By Answering The 
Following Questions 

Gender 

{ Male 

{ Female 

Ethnic Background 

{ African American { Hispanic 

r caucasian r Other 

{ Native American 

Please List (In Order Of Preference) The Boards/Commissions On Which You Would Be Willing To Serve. 

020723 BCC Meeting

157



Work 
Experience: 

Volunteer 
Experience: 

Other 
Experience: 

Other 
Comments: 

Volunteer Application 
Watauga County Boards And Commissions 

(Continued) 

Please list any work, volunteer, and/or other experience you would like to have considered in the review of your application. 

Signature: Date: 

Print Form Reset Form I 

1.23.23

020723 BCC Meeting

158



Volunteer Application 
Watauga County Boards And Commissions 

If you are a Watauga County resident, at least 18 years old, and willing to volunteer your time and 
expertise to your community, please complete the application below and dick on Print Form. 
Please sign and mail or fax to: 

Name: 

Home Address: 

City: 

Telephone: (H) 

Email: 

Place of Employment: 

Job Title: 

Watauga County Commissioners' Office 
814 West King Street, Suite 205 

Boone, NC 28607 
Phone: (828) 265-8000 
Fax: (828) 264-3230 

Zip: 

(W) (Fax) 

In Order To Assure County wide Representation Please Indicate Your Township Of Residence: 

{ Bald Mountain { Stony Fork { Watauga 

{ NewRiver { Brushy Fork { Cove Creek 

{ Beaver Dam { Meat Camp { Shawneehaw 

{ Blue Ridge { Blowing Rock { Laurel Creek 

{ Elk { North Fork { Boone 

In addition, Please Indicate If You Live In One Of The Following Areas: 

{ Foscoe-Grandfather Community { Valle Cruds Historic District 

{ Howards Creek Watershed { Winklers Creek Watershed 

{ South Fork New River Watershed r Extraterritorial Area 

We Ask Your Help In Assuring Diversity Of Membership By Age, Gender, And Race, By Answering The 
Following Questions 

Gender 

{ Male 

{ Female 

Ethnic Background 

{ African American { Hispanic 

r caucasian r Other 

{ Native American 

Please List (In Order Of Preference) The Boards/Commissions On Which You Would Be Willing To Serve. 

Tina Houston

920 Odes Wilson Road

Zionville 28698

828-457-5338 828-898-9200
reidscateringco@gmail.com or tinahouston71@gmail.com

Reid's Cafe & Catering, The Beacon Butcher Bar + Betty's Biscuits

Owner/Operator 

Watauga County Tourism Development Authority

Adult Care Home Community Advisory Committee

Recreation Commission

DocuSign Envelope ID: 036F5DF6-A252-4F2A-8301-67CF3F76CD57

020723 BCC Meeting

159



Work 
Experience: 

Volunteer 
Experience: 

Other 
Experience: 

Other 
Comments: 

Volunteer Application 
Watauga County Boards And Commissions 

(Continued) 

Please list any work, volunteer, and/or other experience you would like to have considered in the review of your application. 

Signature: Date: 

Print Form JI ResetForm ] 

I moved to Western NC in 1993 after attending Old Dominion University with a double 
major is Geology + Outdoor Experiential Education.  During my time living in the 
Boone area I have been self employed [since 1999] in the restaurant industry.  I 
currently own and operate Reid's Cafe & Catering, the Beacon Butcher Bar and 
Betty's Biscuits. 

I have served on the following Boards in the High Country:

Western Youth Network [2000 - 2006 - secretary]
Mountain Pathways Montessori School [2001 - 2004]
Two Rivers Community School [2002 - 2006, secretary]
Mountain Alliance [2006 - 2018, secretary, board chair]
TDA of Watauga Co. [2017 - present]
HC United Way [2018 - present]
High Country Community Clinic [2020 - present, treasurer]

My family are avid hikers, cyclists and general lovers of the mountains. My husband 
Jerry Cantwell teaches in the Recreation Department at AppState.

I truly enjoy my time on the TDA Board.  Watauga County is my home and it's so 
important to see balance in our community with regards to tourism and capital 
improvements necessary for the protection and enjoyment for all.
Please let me know if you have any questions, I would like to be reappointed as we 
are in the midst of several projects that I have been involved with and it would be 
wonderful to see those to fruition. 

Print Form Reset Form

DocuSign Envelope ID: 036F5DF6-A252-4F2A-8301-67CF3F76CD57

1/23/2023

020723 BCC Meeting

160



AGENDA ITEM 12: 

MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 
B. Announcements 

 

MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
The Annual Pre-Budget Retreat is scheduled for Thursday, February 9, beginning at 12:00 P.M. 
and Friday, February 10, 2023, at 9:00 A.M. 
 
 
 
 
  

020723 BCC Meeting

161



AGENDA ITEM 13: 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM 14: 

BREAK 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM 15: 

CLOSED SESSION 
Attorney/Client Matters – G. S. 143-318.11(a)(3) 
 

020723 BCC Meeting

162


	Tentative Agenda and Meeting Notice
	Approval of Minutes
	Approval of the February 7, 2023, Agenda
	W.A.M.Y. Presentation
	4H Presentation
	Blue Ridge Conservancy Presentation
	New River Conservancy Presentation
	Watauga County Public Library Annual Report
	Maintenance Matters
	A.  Bid Award Request for Hannah Building Roof
	B.  Bid Award Request for Law Enforcment Center HVAC

	Parks and Recreation Out-of-State Travel Request
	Finance Matters
	A.  Proposed Audit Contract for Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2023
	B.  Proposed Letter of Engagement for County Financials for Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2023

	Miscellaneous Administrative Matters
	A.  Boards and Commissions
	B.  Announcements

	Public Comment
	Break
	Closed Session

	Name: Matt Vincent
	Home Address: 886 Hunting Hills Lane
	City: Boone
	Zip: 28607
	Telephone H: 
	W: 8282950707
	Fax: 
	Email: mvincent@vpcbuilders.com
	Place of Employment: VPC Builders
	Job Title: Manager
	Group1: Choice15
	Group2: Off
	Group3: Choice01
	Group4: Off
	Dropdown1: [Watauga County Tourism Development Authority]
	Dropdown2: [Watauga County Planning Board]
	Dropdown3: [ ]
	Text5: I am a licensed realtor and General Contractor.  I have also lived in Boone my entire life.
	Text6: -TDA
-Western Youth Network
-Purple Heart Homes
-Samaritan's Purse

	Text7: 
	Text8: I would appreciate the consideration of being reaapointed to the TDA.
	PrintFormButton: 
	ResetButton: 


